
Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

November 10, 2022 – 7:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 
 

 

1.  Call to Order: 
A. Roll Call 
B. Invocation – Attorney Bo Houff 
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Mike Horn 
D. Adoption of Agenda 

 
2. Consent Agenda 

A. Resolution 2022-058 – Financial statements for the three months ended September, 2022 – 
(Attachment #1) 

B. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – October 6, 2022 (Attachment #2) 
C. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – October 13, 2022 (Attachment #3) 

 
3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations 

A. Presentations 
i. Sheriff’s Office  

ii. June 30, 2022 Audit report – Monty Pendry, Gibson & Company PA 
 
4. Public Forum 

A. Residents should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.  
B. Written comments are also available. 

 
5. Appointment(s) – None  

 
6. Public Hearing(s)  

A. UDO L-167 Lewisville Rural Overlay and Planned Residential Developments 
i. Ordinance 2022-029 – UDO L-167 Lewisville Rural Overlay and Planned Residential 

Developments (Attachment #4) 
 

7. Technical Review(s) – None 
 

8. Preliminary Site Plan Approval(s) – None 
 

9. Evidentiary Hearing(s) – None  
 

10. Annexation Request(s) – None 
 

11. Old Business  
A. 2023 Meeting Schedule (Attachment #5) 
B. 2023 Budget Calendar (Attachment #6) 
C. Ordinance 2022-059 – Establishing a Public Art Advisory Committee (Attachment #7) 
D. Ordinance 2022-060 – Amending Chapter 16 - Facility exempt user requests - West Forsyth 

Christian Preschool (Attachment #8) 
E. Ordinance 2022-061 – Amending Chapter 16 - Facility exempt user requests - Kiwanis Club of 

Clemmons (Attachment #9) 
F. Ordinance 2022-062 – Amending Chapter 16 - Facility exempt user requests - Tim Sutton 

Ministries International, Inc. (Attachment #10) 



 

 

G. Ordinance 2022-063 – Amending Chapter 16 - Facility exempt user requests - Lewisville United 
Methodist Church (Attachment #11) 
 

12. New Business  
A. Ordinance 2022-056– Declaring road closure for Christmas Parade (Attachment #12) 
B. Ordinance 2022-057 – Budget amendment for security cameras - $42,966.28 (Attachment #13) 
C. Resolution 2022-064 – Security camera contract with Sage Security Solutions, LLC - $42,966.28 

(Attachment #14) 
D. Resolution 2022-065 – Appointing Deputy Finance Officer (Attachment #15) 

 
13. Administrative Reports 

A. Upcoming events at Shallowford Square and Town holidays (Attachment #16) 
B. Manager’s Report 

i. Assistant Town Manager 
C. Planning Report   
D. Attorney’s Report  
E. Clerk’s Report  
F. Community Center Facilities & Programming Manager Report  
G. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on November 3, 2022  

i. Ordinance 2022-055 – Budget amendment for four additional deputies and increased deputy 
hours for Christmas Parade - $1,485 

ii. Ordinance 2022-058 – Budget amendment for installation of circuit panels on new Duke 
Energy poles for Christmas decorations - $7,460 

iii. Resolution 2022-061– Interlocal agreement with Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Utilities for 
relocation of Lewisville lift station  
 

14. For the Good of the Order 
A. Public Comments 

i. Residents should limit their comments to three (3) minutes. 
ii. Written comment forms are also available.  

B. Council Comments 
 

15. Adjournment 
 



DRAFT

Attachment #1



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2022 – 6:30 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:30 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler, and Jane
Welch.  Also attending were Interim Town Manager & Planner Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director
Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Attorney Bo Houff, and Facility Manager Brian Moore.
Council Member David Smitherman were absent.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Welch moved to approve the agenda to include a closed
session. The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.

2. Introductions, Recognitions and Presentations for October 6, 2022
A. Introduction

i. Planner I – Mrs. Tolbert introduced Adam Barr as the Town’s new Planner I.  Mr. Barr is a UNC-
Greensboro graduate and formerly worked in the planning department at Davie County
assisting Mocksville and Bermuda Run.

B. Presentation
i. Lewisville lift station relocation – Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Utilities (WSFCU) staff and

a Freese & Nichols representative shared with Council information related to the relocation
of the sewer lift station currently located behind the Food Lion shopping center.  The purpose
of the new lift station is due to the Great Wagon Road construction.  WSFCU briefly explained
the new location of the lift station as well as cost and projected service area.  The Town would
be responsible for ninety percent (90%) of design, bidding and construction administration
cost. WSFCU will pay ten percent (10%).  WSFCU will pay $250,000 of construction cost with
the Town paying construction costs exceeding $250,000.  Council discussed the reserve and
their desire to, hopefully, recoup some of the costs through voluntary annexations in the
service area not currently in the Town limits.  It was noted these discussions would need to
be held with Utilities Director Courtney Driver. Staff was requested to gather information
related to the most recent sewer study and minutes related to the 2018-2019 discussions.
Staff was also requested to compile a list of committed project funds.  (Presentation is included as 

part of the minutes.)

3. Administrative Report
A. Community Center Facilities & Programming Manager

i. Mr. Moore shared a quarterly report of events, programs and rentals at Mary Alice Warren
Community center (MAWCC).  Mr. Moore also reported that repair work related to the
construction warranty was being done and great progress was being made.  Mr. Moore is also
developing a participation survey to gain feedback on potential programs at MAWCC.  (Mr. 

Moore’s report is included as part of the minutes.)

4. Closed Session - NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) – Council Member Hunt moved to enter into closed session
related to attorney-client privilege pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) at 8:21 PM.  The motion was
seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously.

5. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. Establishing a Public Art Advisory Committee – Mrs. Moore requested guidance from Council as

she drafts an ordinance establishing a Public Art Advisory Committee.  Council consensus was to

Attachment #2



 

       

develop an expansive ordinance addressing indoor and outdoor art and for the committee to be 
a freestanding committee.  

 
6. Items Requiring Action at Briefing 

A. Ordinance 2022-052– Budget amendment for street sweeping - $4,650 – Council Member 
Franklin moved to approve Ordinance 2022-052 as presented. The motion was seconded by 
Council Member Sadler and passed unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-052 is herein incorporated by reference 

into the minutes.) 
B. Resolution 2022-060 – Additional street sweeping due to Hurricane Ian - $4,650 – Council Member 

Sadler moved to approve Resolution 2022-060 as presented. The motion was seconded by Mayor 
Pro Tem Foster and passed unanimously.  (Resolution 2022-060 is herein incorporated by reference into the 

minutes.) 
C. Approval of Town Manager employment contract – Mayor Horn shared an offer for Town 

Manager has been extended to the Council’s top candidate. Council consensus was that the Town 
Manager does not receive compensatory time for attending agenda briefings and regular Council 
meetings.  Council consensus was also given that the Town Manager will accrue sick and vacation 
the same as other staff.  Council Member Welch moved to approve the proposed Town Manager 
employment contract. The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and passed 
unanimously.   
 

7. Unfinished Business  
a. Review and select MAWCC solar panel proposal – Council consensus was given for the Town to 

pursue the Duke Energy rebate for the 96% consumption offset solar panels with Renewable 
Energy Design.  (Presentation is included as part of the minutes.) 

 
A recess was taken from 9:50 PM until 10:02 PM. 
 

b. BAC status update 
i.   Plans of work – Clerk Moore presented the draft plans of work for all Town boards and 
committees.  The plans of work reflect the board/committee’s request and staff comments.  
Council reviewed each plan of work and made suggestions.  (Plans of work are included as part of the 

minutes.) 
a.  Planning Board - Council Member Hunt moved to approve the Planning Board plan of work 

as amended.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler and passed 
unanimously.   

b.  Public Safety Advisory Committee - Council Member Welch moved to approve the Public 
Safety Advisory Committee plan of work as amended.  The motion was seconded by 
Council Member Sadler and passed unanimously.   

c.  Environmental, Conservation and Sustainability Committee – Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved 
to approve the Environmental, Conservation and Sustainability Committee plan of work as 
amended.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and passed unanimously.   

d. Lewisville Beautification Committee - Council Member Sadler moved to approve the 
Lewisville Beautification Committee plan of work as amended.  The motion was seconded 
by Council Member Welch and passed unanimously.   

e.  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – Mayor Pro tem Foster moved to approve the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Board plan of work as amended.  The motion was seconded by 
Council Member Sadler and passed unanimously.   

 



 

       

8. Administrative Reports 
A. Manager  
B. Attorney – Mr. Houff announced he will be retiring at the end of the year. 
C. Public Works  
D. Planning – None  
E. Finance – Mrs. Orrell reported the garbage and recycling fuel surcharge has increased due to the 

rising fuel costs.  A budget amendment will be presented to Council for their consideration next 
week.  

F. Clerk – None  
 

9. Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on October 13, 2022 
A. Tentative Agenda 

i. Consent Agenda 
a. Resolution 2022-058 – Financial statements for the two month ended August 31, 2022  
b. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – September 1, 2022  
c. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 7, 2022 
d. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 7, 2022 
e. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – September 8, 2022  
f. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 9, 2022 
g. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 14, 2022  
h. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 14, 2022  
i. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 20, 2022  
j. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 20, 2022 
k. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 28, 2022 
l. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 28, 2022 
m. Resolution 2022-059 – Accepting resignation of Dale Harriman – Public Safety Advisory 

Committee  
ii. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations 

a. Presentations 
a. Sheriff’s office 

b. Introductions 
a. Planner I – Adam Barr 
b. Town Manager 

iii. Appointment(s) 
a. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (2 vacancies) 

iv. Public Hearings 
v. Technical Review(s) 

vi. Preliminary Site Plan Approvals 
vii. Evidentiary Hearings 

viii. Old Business 
ix. New Business 

a. Ordinance 2022-050 – Budget amendment to cover increased garbage and recycling fuel 
surcharge - $27,000  

b. Ordinance 2022-051 – Budget amendment to purchase two (2) Level 2 electric vehicle 
charging stations - $48,305  

c. Resolution 2022-057 – Contract with Colite for two (2) Level 2 EV charging stations - 
$48,305  



 

       

d. Resolution 2022-061– Interlocal agreement with Winston-Salem/Forsyth County 
Utilities for relocation of Lewisville lift station  

e. Ordinance 2022-053 – Budget amendment to purchase solar panels for MAWCC  
f. Resolution 2022-062 – Awarding MAWCC solar panel contract  
g. Ordinance 2022-XXX – Budget amendment for tree replacements  

1. Mrs. Tolbert reported the budget amendment is to replace trees throughout Town 
as well as the purchase of a Chestnut tree that has been donated by Mary Alice 
Warren.  

B. Approval of Tentative Agenda for regular meeting on October 13, 2022 
i. Council Member Hunt moved to approve the tentative agenda for October 13, 2022. The 

motion was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously. 
 

10. For the Good of the Order 
A. Mayor Pro Tem Foster extended thanks to Mrs. Tolbert and Mrs. Moore for their endeavors with 

the plans of work.  
B. Mayor Pro Tem Foster inquired about the possibility of permitting voluntary agricultural districts.  

Council consensus was for a report be given to Council at the November Briefing.  
 

11. Adjournment – Council Member Franklin moved to adjourn the meeting at 11:11 PM.  The motion 
was seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously.  

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

October 13, 2022 – 7:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 7:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, and Jane Welch.  Also 
attending were Interim Town Manager & Planner Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell,
Town Clerk Dora Moore and Town Attorney Bowen Houff.  Ken Sadler and David Smitherman
were absent.

B. Invocation – Attorney Bo Houff
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Fred Franklin
D. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Franklin moved to approve the agenda as presented. The

motion was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.

2. Consent Agenda
A. Consent agenda items

A. Resolution 2022-058 – Financial statements for the two month ended August 31, 2022
B. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – September 1, 2022
C. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 7, 2022
D. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 7, 2022
E. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – September 8, 2022
F. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 8, 2022
G. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 14, 2022
H. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 14, 2022
I. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 20, 2022
J. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – September 20, 2022
K. Approval of Called Meeting  Minutes – September 28, 2022
L. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – September 28, 2022
M. Resolution 2022-059 – Accepting resignation of Dale Harriman – Public Safety Advisory

Committee
B. Council Member Welch moved to approve the consent agenda. The motion was seconded by

Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.
(Resolutions 2022-058 and 2022-059 are herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

3. Presentations, Introductions and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office – Sergeant Stringer shared current call statistics.  He reported
there has been an increase in car break-ins.  Sergeant Stringer cautioned residents to keep
their cars locked and valuables out of sight. For Halloween, residents are encouraged to watch
out for trick-or-treaters, use flashlights, and slow down driving through neighborhoods.
Council Member Hunt commended deputies for what they do in terms of mental health calls.

Attachment #3



 
 
B. Introductions 

i. Planner 1 – Adam Barr – Mrs. Tolbert introduced Adam Barr as the Town’s new Planner I.  Mr. 
Barr has been with the town for two weeks and brings a lot of experience with him.  

ii. Town Manager – James Ayers – After an extensive interview process, Council welcomed James 
Ayers as the Town’s new Town Manager.  Mr. Ayers’ first day with the Town will be November 
1. Mr. Ayers shared his appreciation for the Council’s trust and said he would serve the Town 
honorably and with integrity.  Council Member Hunt thanked Mayor Horn for guiding Council 
through the manager search process.  

 
4. Public Forum  

A. Dan Frey, 165 Will Austin Court – Mr. Frey shared his thoughts related to the Winston-
Salem/Forsyth County Utilities and Town lift station agreement. Mayor Horn explained the Town 
will receive a percentage of the water fees assessed on a new line.  These revenues are placed in 
a special fund for projects such as this.  Currently, the town has approximately $5.6 million in the 
fund.   

 
5. Appointment(s)  

A. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (2 vacancies) 
i. Council Member Franklin moved to appoint Stuart Chamberlin to the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved 
unanimously.  

 
6. Public Hearing(s) – None  

 
7. Technical Review(s) for Compliance – None 

 
8. Preliminary Site Plan Approval(s) – None  

 
9. Evidentiary Hearing(s) – None  

 
10. Annexation Request(s) – None  

 
11. Old Business – None  

 
12. New Business 

A. Ordinance 2022-050 – Budget amendment to cover increased garbage and recycling fuel 
surcharge - $27,000 – Mrs. Orrell reported the fuel surcharge for garbage and recycling service 
with Waste Management has increased due to rising fuel prices.  To cover the additional cost, 
Mrs. Orrell is requesting the Council to consider a budget amendment for $27,000.  She noted 
that if the cost of fuel increases again, she may have to request additional funding.  Council 
Member Hunt moved to approve Ordinance 2022-050.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro 
Tem Foster and approved unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-050 is herein incorporated by reference into the 
minutes.) 

B. Ordinance 2022-051 – Budget amendment to purchase two (2) Level 2 electric vehicle charging 
stations - $48,305 – Mrs. Tolbert reported the Town received a rebate offer of $20,000 to install 
EV charging stations along David McKee Street.  Mrs. Tolbert has confirmed the Town can program 



software to manage the stations including fees, which needs to be determined by the time the 
system is up and running.  Council Member Welch moved to approve Ordinance 2022-051.  The 
motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-051 is 
herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)  

 
Council Member Sadler arrived at 7:20 PM. 
 

C. Resolution 2022-057 – Contract with Colite for two (2) Level 2 EV charging stations - $48,305 - 
Council Member Sadler moved to approve Resolution 2022-057.  The motion was seconded by 
Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2022-057 is herein incorporated by 
reference into the minutes.) 

D. Resolution 2022-061– Interlocal agreement with Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Utilities for 
relocation of Lewisville lift station – After considerable discussion, Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved 
to postpone making a decision until the November 3, 2022 briefing.   The motion was seconded 
by Council Member Hunt.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster and Council Members Hunt, Sadler and Welch 
voted aye.  Mayor Horn and Council Member Franklin voted nay.  Motion passed 4-2.   

E. Ordinance 2022-053 – Budget amendment to purchase solar panels for MAWCC - $121,824 – Jeff 
Redwine, Renewable Energy Design Group, shared information and answered questions related 
to the proposed solar panels on the Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC).  The panels 
would not be seen from the street and would be installed by the end of the first quarter.  Mayor 
Pro Tem Foster moved to approve Ordinance 2022-053.  The motion was seconded by Council 
Member Welch and approved unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-053 is herein incorporated by reference into 
the minutes.) 

F. Resolution 2022-062 – Awarding MAWCC solar panel contract - Council Member Hunt moved to 
approve Resolution 2022-062.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved 
unanimously.  (Resolution 2022-062 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 

G. Ordinance 2022-054 – Budget amendment for tree replacements - $3,680 – Public Works and the 
Town’s contractor have identified trees around town that need to be replaced.  Also included with 
the budget amendment is a Chestnut tree that Mary Alice Warren purchased in memory of her 
parents.  Council Member Welch moved to approve Ordinance 2022-054.  The motion was 
seconded by Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-054 is herein 
incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 

 
13. Administrative Reports 

A. Upcoming Town events and holidays – Mrs. Tolbert shared the following upcoming events at 
Shallowford Square: October 14 - Halloweentown movie and October 22 – Shalloween.  Mrs. 
Tolbert applauded Mrs. Howard for planning the most successful summer season ever.  

B. Manager’s Report 
i. Bulky item pickup – Bulky item pickup will be November 7.  Residents are requested to have 

bulky items at the street by 6 AM that morning.  
ii. Council chambers audio/visual system – Mrs. Tolbert reported the new audio/visual system 

has been installed in the Council chambers and is being tested during tonight’s meeting. It was 
noted the Communication Specialist can remote in to control cameras, sound, etc.  

C. Planner’s Report – None  
D. Attorney’s Report – None 
E. Clerk’s Report – None 
F. Community Center Facilities & Programming Manager’s Report – None 

 



G. Approvals at Special Called Meeting on September 28, 2022 
i. Resolution 2022-056 – EV charging rebate agreement  

H. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on October 6, 2022  
i. Ordinance 2022-052– Budget amendment for street sweeping - $4,650  

ii. Resolution 2022-060 – Additional street sweeping due to Hurricane Ian - $4,650  
iii. Approval of Town Manager employment contract 
iv. Boards and committees plans of work 

 
14. For the Good of the Order 

A. Public comments – None  
B. Council comments 

i. Council Member Welch thanked Council and staff for wearing pink for Breast Cancer 
Awareness Month.  She encouraged women to have their annual mammogram because early 
detection can saves lives.  

ii. Mayor Horn requested Council consider lifting the moratorium on facility exempt user 
requests.  Mayor Horn moved that the moratorium on facility exempt user requests be lifted.  
Mayor Horn further moved that the requests received prior to lifting the moratorium be 
permitted to submit an application and allow staff to deem those who are qualified.  The 
motions were seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously. 

 
15. Adjournment – Council Member Welch moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:40 PM. The motion was 

seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2022-029 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
UDO L-167 - AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) 

LEWISVILLE RURAL OVERLAY AND PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board held public hearings on May 11, 2022 and October 26, 2022 on 
the draft to amend the UDO section related to the Lewisville Rural Overlay (LRO) and Planned Residential 
Developments (PRD); and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board recommended approval to the Lewisville Town Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council held a public hearing on November 10, 2022. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) UDOL-167 related to the Lewisville Rural Overlay (LRO) and Planned Residential 
Developments (PRD) is amended as noted in the attached document.      

Adopted this the 10th day of November 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

__________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk DRAFT

Attachment #4



 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 

DOCKET # UDO L-167 

 

REQUEST 

This text amendment was drafted by staff to amend the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to officially 

define the area of the Lewisville Rural Overlay (LRO) and to adopt a map showing the boundaries of the 

LRO.  The amendment also intends to further protect the sensitive lands of Lewisville including scenic 

vistas, heritage corridors and lands along the Yadkin River.  The amendment applies to UDO Chapter B, 

Article II, Section 2-1.2; Chapter B, Article II, Section 2-1.6; and Chapter B, Article II, Section 2-5.59. 

 

BACKGROUND 

In UDO, Chapter B, Article II Zoning Ordinance, there are multiple sections addressing the Lewisville Rural 

Overlay District.  The town has adopted specific standards for properties within the LRO and refers to an 

exhibit in the appendix section of the Ordinance for the map.  Unfortunately, the map is not found in 

the appendix.  In addition, our very desirable rural areas of Town need further protection to remain the 

beautiful areas they are today.  This text amendment is meant to be proactive for the changes coming 

to Lewisville. 

  
ANALYSIS 

Staff, along with the Planning Board, have continued to study the areas of the UDO that attempt the 

preservation of rural areas.  Along with UDO regulations, the newly adopted 2022 Lewisville Tomorrow 

Comprehensive Plan details the “Rural Residential” area of the Future Land Use Map as areas intended to 

maintain rural character by limiting large-scale subdivisions, enhance the conservation of the natural 

landscape and viability of working lands, and continue to protect the community’s natural resources 

through land use designations and conservation districts. Planned Residential Developments (PRD) are 

meant to preserve open space and cluster development, however, the conditions for the PRD use do not 

protect large rural tracts of land generally located in the Yadkin River Conservation (YR) zoning district, 

the Agricultural (AG) zoning district and the RS-40 & RS-30 zoning districts.  With the update to the 

requirements of PRDs along with the adoption of a map of the LRO, we feel this is a needed text 

amendment to the UDO. 

 

SUMMARY 

This text amendment will clarify the area designated as the Lewisville Rural Overlay, it will further regulate 

the environmentally sensitive areas of Lewisville, and it will modify the requirements of Planned 

Residential Developments to clarify open space requirements.  Staff believes this change to the UDO is 

reasonable and consistent with the 2022 Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan and will make the UDO 

more easily understood and interpreted. 

 

The exact language to be added and/or amended to the UDO is attached. 



 

 

  UDO L-167 UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

AMENDMENT TO:  Lewisville Rural Overlay Boundaries and Planned Residential Development 

Requirements\ 

 

 

Chapter B; Article II, Section 2-1.2 

RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – PURPOSE STATEMENTS AND REGULATIONS 

 

(A) YR Yadkin River Conservation District. 

 

 (3) Supplementary District Requirements. 

  

  (b) Development Standards. 

 

(i) Minimum Lot Size.  A minimum lot size of three (3) acres shall be 

required., except for sites developed as planned residential 

developments.  The overall density of a planned residential development 

may exceed one unit per three (3) acres if a density bonus is received as 

set forth in the use conditions for planned residential developments in 

Section B.2-5.59.  However, density for planned residential 

developments shall not exceed two (2) units per acre in developable 

areas not restricted by floodplain or steep hillsides. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Chapter B; Article II, Section 2-1.6  

OVERLAY AND SPECIAL PURPOSE ZONING DISTRICTS – PURPOSE STATEMENTS AND 

REGULATIONS  

 

(F) Lewisville Rural Overlay District (LRO) 

 

(2) Boundaries.  All lots designated as “Rural Residential” within current and future town 

limits as shown on the Future Land Use map “LRO Map of Lewisville” found in 

Appendix Exhibit 5 in the adopted 2022 Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan shall 

constitute the LRO District. 

 

(3) LRO District Requirements. 
 

 (a) Applicability. 

(i) New Development.  The regulations of the LRO District shall apply to 

any change in use of property or change in zoning within the boundaries 

of the LRO District.  The preferred use for residential is existing zoning.  

All residential development that occurs from a change in use or change 

in zoning shall follow the standards as set out in Chapter B Section 2-

5.59 Planned Residential Development. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Chapter B; Article II, Section 2-5.59  

PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS 

 

(A)  Purpose  

The purpose of the planned residential development is to encourage the development of living 

environments which meet the needs of the people who live in them by providing certain 

development privileges in exchange for preplanning and design considerations. The planned 

residential development provides flexibility in utilizing new development concepts and in 

introducing variety into neighborhoods by encouraging mixed uses, private roads, variable lot size, 

and environmentally sensitive design which promotes the conservation of open space. 

 

(B)  Minimum Size  

A planned residential development shall be located on a site containing at least five (5) 

contiguous acres, except where single family residential is the only use in the planned residential 

development. 

 

(C)  Land Ownership  

At the time of application for a planned residential development, all land, structures and other real 

property shall be in single or joint ownership of whatever form, or the petitioner shall have the right 

to acquire ownership under a valid option, and this information shall be included in the submission 

of an application for a planned residential development. 

 

(D)  Permitted Principal Uses 

 

(1)  Uses in Applicable Zoning Districts. Land may be used and buildings erected, altered, 

enlarged, or used to include all uses permitted within the applicable zoning district. In 

addition, in the RSQ and RS-7 Districts, up to twenty-five percent (25%) of the total 

number of units may be multifamily residential units with approval of a special use permit 

from the Elected Body. 

 

(2)  Additional Uses. Nonresidential uses permitted in the NO and NB Districts shall be 

permitted in a planned residential development containing at least one hundred (100) 

dwelling units and located in a residential zoning district other than the YR or AG Districts. 

  

(E)  Relationship to Other Applicable Regulations  

A planned residential development shall be subject to all applicable standards, procedures, and 

regulations of these Ordinances and the zoning district in which it is located unless otherwise set 

forth in this section. 

 

(F)  Maximum Density  

Maximum residential density shall be in accordance with the zoning district in which the planned 

residential development lies, unless the incentives for density bonuses as set forth in Section B.2-

5.59(G) apply. 

 

(G)  Incentives for Density Bonus 

 

(1)  Protection of Steep Slopes. If the developer of a planned residential development proposes 

to permanently prohibit development on portions of the site with average slopes of twenty 

percent (20%) or greater, the density bonus provision of Section B.2-5.59(G)(2) may be 

utilized. 

 



 

 

(2)  Density Bonus. The permitted density of the planned residential development shall be 

computed by including in the land area of the site an assumed additional area equal to fifty 

percent (50%) of the permanently restricted land identified in Section B.2-5.59(G)(1). 

 

(3)  Limitation of Density Bonus. The density with the bonus density provision shall not 

increase by more than twenty-five percent (25%) the maximum density otherwise 

computed in Section B.2-5.59(F) without reference to this Section B.2-5.59(G). In the YR 

District, the permitted density shall not exceed two (2) units per acre of developable land 

not restricted by floodplain or hillsides. 

 

(4)  Applicability of Density Bonus Provisions. The computation allowed by this section shall 

be used solely for purposes of computing permitted density, and shall not apply to the 

development standards of Section B.2-5.59(H). 

 

(HF)  Development Standards  

A planned residential development shall meet the following standards: 

 

(1)  Conservation Design Standards 

Planned Residential Developments shall include designs where the following areas are 

considered.  These areas shall be identified and delineated on the site plan. 

 

(a) Primary Conservation Area (PCA).  PCAs shall include, but are not limited to, 

unbuildable wetlands, floodplains, stream/pond buffers, natural steep slopes 

(>20%) and other lands protected by federal law at the discretion of the Lewisville 

Planning Board.  The PCA shall not count towards the minimum open space 

requirement shown in Section B.2-5.59(F)(10). 

 

(b) Secondary Conservation Area (SCA).  SCAs shall include, but are not limited to, 

unprotected elements of the natural landscape such as mature woodlands, 

meadows, wildlife habitats, cultural features such as historic and archeological 

sites and scenic views. Wastewater and Stormwater management systems serving 

the Planned Residential Development may be located within the SCA.  Surface 

systems such as retention ponds shall not qualify towards the minimum SCA 

required.  SCAs may count towards no more than 20% of the total required open 

space calculation shown in Section B.2-5.59(F)(10).  

 

(c) Conservation Alternative Compliance.  Development within the PCA and SCA, or 

the use of the PCA and SCA towards open space calculations, may be permitted 

for developments which provide low or no impact to the physical site.  An 

application for alternative compliance shall include an environmental analysis 

along with the site plan detailing the following: 

 

(i) The potential or actual impacts of the proposed development on the 

environment specifically in the conservation areas;  

 

(ii) A description of the impact to the land including topography changes, 

forestry activities, an increase in surface run-off, etc.; 

 

(iii) A description of any investigations or studies of the possible impact of the 

proposed development on the environment; 

 

Alternative compliance shall be approved by the Planning Board only upon  

finding that the proposed plan fulfills the intent and purposes of this section equal  



 

 

to or better than would strict conformance with the requirements of this section. 

 

(2) Bufferyard. 

 

(a)  Width and Location Perimeter Bufferyard. A minimum thirty (30) foot wide type 

II bufferyard shall be provided around the entire perimeter of the zoning lot, 

except: 

 

(i) At such location where single family residential lots within the planned 

residential development meet or exceed the minimum lot requirements of 

a residential zoning district adjacent to and outside the planned residential 

development; 

 

(ii)  Where the zoning lot is adjacent to a floodplain at least sixty (60) feet 

wide; 

 

(iii)  Where an internal residential lot line lies at least one hundred (100) feet 

from an adjacent zoning lot; 

 

(iv)  Where open space or a passive recreation area at least thirty (30) feet wide 

lies next to the adjacent zoning lot. 

 

(v)  Planned Residential Developments shall require one tree per lot in the 

front yard. 

 

(b) Corridor Bufferyard.  A minimum one hundred (100) foot wide type III bufferyard 

shall be provided along any Heritage Corridor as determined by the Lewisville 

Comprehensive Plan. If the Heritage Corridor contains significant existing natural 

or historic elements, these elements shall be preserved.  Where present, these 

natural elements may supplement or take the place of the required type III 

bufferyard at the discretion of the Lewisville Planning Board. 

 

(bc)  Access Drives. No loading space, parking space, or access drive to a parking space 

shall be permitted within the required bufferyard, with the following exceptions: 

 

(i)  An access drive to off-street parking serving a single family detached 

dwelling, whether inside or outside of a carport or garage attached to or 

detached from such dwelling. Such access drives shall not constitute off-

street parking as required in Section B.3-3. 

 

(ii)  Drives not longer than fifty (50) feet which provide access to the planned 

residential development. 

 

(d) Required Planting. Planned Residential Developments shall require a minimum of 

one tree per lot planted in the front yard. 

 

(23)  Required Parking 

 

(a)  Off-Street Parking. Off-street parking shall be provided in compliance with 

Section B.3-3, except that the parking requirements may be met through group 

parking located on commonly owned land. Variation shall be provided to avoid 

visual monotony on long, straight portions of the street through the manipulation 

of the building elements and massing. Linear, repetitive streetscape appearance 



 

 

and building facades shall be avoided by providing variations between the front 

elevations and through landscaping plans; particularly through the landscape 

definition of pedestrian pathways. Houses with identical or similar building 

elevations and/or floor plans shall not be located on adjacent lots or directly across 

the street from each other. Where a single house design is used repeatedly, 

materials and detailing of major facade elements shall be varied. New housing 

development should avoid front elevations, which mainly consist of rows of garage 

doors ("tail pipe architecture"). Residential garages and parking pads located at the 

front of homes, dominating the streetscape, should be avoided. 

 

(b)  Special Accommodations. Special accommodations for recreational vehicles, 

including boats, may be provided in group parking areas. Such special parking 

areas shall be designated and screened from adjacent residential uses. 

 

(c)  On-Street Parking. Some on-street parking may be permitted to satisfy off-street 

parking requirements in accordance with Section B.3-3.5(M) of this Ordinance. 

 

 

 

(34)  Private Streets. Private streets are permitted according to the following requirements: 

 

(a)  Width. Access easements for roads must be a minimum of twenty-five (25) feet in 

width. 

 

(b)  Entrance Requirements. Gated or fenced communities must provide an entrance 

minimum of twenty (20) feet to accommodate emergency vehicles and must adhere 

to all other applicable standards found in Town Code Chapter 19. 

 

(c)  Utilities Easements. Utilities easements at a minimum width of seven and one-half 

(7.5) feet must be provided on each side of the road. 

 

(d)  Road Construction Materials Standards. Town of Lewisville and North Carolina 

Department of Transportation road construction materials standards must be met. 

 

(45)  Pedestrian Access. Pedestrian and other modes of non-vehicular movement shall be 

provided and separated from vehicular traffic, and shall provide a safe connection between 

major uses on the site. All new Planned Residential Development shall provide sidewalks, 

greenways or bikeways at a ratio of one (1) linear foot of sidewalk, greenway or bikeway 

per linear, centerline foot of public/private streets when considering the PRD or 

Subdivision as a whole. Alleys and private drives associated with minor subdivisions are 

exempt from linear foot calculations. The exact location and type of pedestrian connection 

shall be determined during the site plan and subdivision review process with an emphasis 

on the functional relationship of the required connection to destination points and other 

existing or planned pedestrian segments. All pedestrian segments shall meet or exceed 

ADA standards and shall otherwise be constructed of concrete, asphalt or other all-weather 

surface. Driveways shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet in length, exclusive of sidewalk 

or curb. If driveways are not constructed to meet minimum standards, then streets shall be 

constructed to accommodate on-street parking. 

 

(56)  Impervious Surface Cover. Buildings and improvements on single family lots in a 

planned residential development which have at least five thousand (5,000) square feet shall 

not be calculated as impervious surface cover in RM Districts. 

 



 

 

(67)  Nonresidential Uses. Nonresidential uses as permitted by Section B.2-5.59(D)(2) shall 

meet the following requirements: 

 

(a)  Orientation. A nonresidential use in a planned residential development shall be 

designed and located to serve primarily the residents of the planned residential 

development. Such use shall be located on and shall face an internal street of the 

development, and shall not access directly on a street outside the planned 

residential development. 

 

(b)  Amount. No more than twenty-five (25) square feet of gross floor area per dwelling 

unit, up to a maximum of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet, shall be permitted 

for nonresidential uses in the planned residential development. 

 

(c)  Size of Nonresidential Structures. Structures containing only nonresidential uses 

shall be limited to a gross floor area no greater than one thousand five hundred 

(1,500) square feet each. 

 

(d)  Setback. A nonresidential use, including any supporting parking area, shall be set 

back a minimum of three hundred (300) feet from residentially zoned property or 

the public right-of-way of roads other than a major thoroughfare, and a minimum 

of one hundred fifty (150) feet from the public right-of-way of a major 

thoroughfare. 

 

(78)  Lot Dimensional Requirements and Spacing of Structures. The lot and setback 

dimensional requirements of the zoning district for individual lots within the planned 

residential development are waived. Minimum distances between townhouse and 

multifamily structures shall be those set forth in Section B.3-1.2(K). Minimum distances 

between single family, duplex, and twin home structures shall be as follows: 

 

(a)  Front Facing Front. The minimum distance between the front wall of structures 

oriented so as to face each other shall be not less than thirty (30) feet from one 

another, provided neither shall be closer than ten (10) feet from the nearest right-

of-way line of a public street or private access easement. 

 

(b)  Rear Facing Rear. Dwellings oriented back to back shall be subject to the following 

provisions: 

 

(i)  The minimum distance between rear walls of the dwellings shall be no less 

than thirty (30) feet. 

 

(ii)  Carports or garages shall be permitted in the intervening space between 

dwellings oriented back to back provided: 

 

 

[A]  Carports or garages shall be no more than one story and of a total 

dimension not greater than twenty-four (24) feet by twenty-four 

(24) feet, whether attached or detached from the dwelling. 

 

[B]  The rear walls of two (2) carports or garages oriented back to back 

shall not be closer than six (6) feet. 

 

[C]  The rear wall of the carport or garage of one dwelling shall be no 

less than thirty (30) feet from the rear wall of another dwelling to 



 

 

which it is oriented back to back. For the purpose of this provision, 

the rear wall of the carport or garage shall be that wall opposite 

the front wall of the dwelling it serves, whether or not it shall be 

the entrance wall of such carport or garage. 

 

(c)  Front Facing Side. The minimum distance between the front wall of the structure 

and the side wall of another structure shall not be less than fourteen (14) feet. 

 

(d)  Side Facing Side. The minimum distance between side walls of structures shall not 

be less than fourteen (14) feet. 

 

(e) Rear Facing Side. The minimum distance between the rear of a structure and the 

side of another structure shall not be less than fourteen (14) feet. 

 

(f)  Rear Facing Front. The minimum distance between the front wall of one structure 

and the rear wall of another structure shall be not less than thirty (30) feet, provided 

neither shall be closer than ten (10) feet from the nearest right-of-way line of a 

public street or private access easement. 

 

(89)  Common Recreation Areas. Common recreation areas shall be required in accordance 

with Section B.3-6 for a planned residential development containing forty (40) units or 

greater. Life Care Developments and other housing occupied by persons who are at least 

fifty-five (55) years of age or disabled are exempt from this requirement. Common 

Recreation Areas may count towards open space requirements as shown in Section B.2-

5.59(F)(10). 

 

(910)  Common Open Space. Open Space and Density Requirements. 

Maximum residential density shall be in accordance with the zoning district in which the 

planned residential development lies, unless the incentives for density bonuses as set forth 

in the table below apply.  Density is allowed to increase as more open space is provided in 

the development. 

 

(a)  Area. Common open space shall not be less than the following percentages of the 

land area of the planned residential development, excluding dedicated public 

rights-of-way or private access easements. 

 

Underlying Zoning District Minimum Open Space 
Provided 

Maximum Density 

YR 20% 30% 3 ac. 

YR 50% 2 ac. 

AG 20% 30% 40,000 sq. ft. 

AG 50% 30,000 sq. ft. 

RS-40 20% 30% 40,000 sq. ft. 

RS-40 50% 30,000 sq. ft. 

RS-30 20% 30% 30,000 sq. ft. 

RS-30 50% 22,500 sq. ft. 

RS-20 30% 20,000 sq. ft. 

RS-20 50% 15,000 sq.ft. 

RS-15 30%  15,000 sq. ft. 

RS-15 50% 11,250 sq. ft. 

RS-12 30%  12,000 sq. ft. 



 

 

RS-12 50% 9,000 sq. ft.  

RS-9 30% 15% 9,000 sq. ft. 

RS-9 25% 6,750 sq. ft. 

RS-7 30% 15% 7,000 sq.ft. 

RS-7 25% 5,250 sq. ft. 

RSQ 30% 15% See Section B.2-1.2(J)(2) 

RSQ 25% 75% of required lot size 

RM 30% 15% See Section B.2-1.2(K-O) 

RM 25% 75% of required lot size 

IP 30% 15% 10,000 sq.ft. 

IP 25% 7,500 sq. ft. 

MU-SC 30% 15% 5,000 sq. ft. 

MU-C 25% 3,750 sq. ft. 
 

(b)  Minimum Average Open Space Quotient. The minimum average open space 

quotient shall be determined by dividing the square footage of open space used to 

satisfy the requirement in Section B.2-5.59(H)(9)(a), by one quarter (0.25) of the 

lineal footage of its periphery. The minimum average quotient throughout the 

development shall not be less than one hundred (100) feet. 

 

(c)  Location. The open space required in Section B.2-5.59(H)(9)(a) and which is held 

by a non-profit homeowners' association shall adjoin the planned residential 

development for at least fifty percent (50%) of the periphery of such required open 

space. shall be connected throughout the development.  Open Space is considered 

connected if separated by a roadway, easement or an accessory amenity. 

 

(d)  Character. Common Open Space (as defined in Section A.2) shall include the 

following three (3) types of open space: environmental, scenic and internal. 

Environmental shall include riparian area, steep slopes and, when feasible, other 

significant natural areas. Scenic shall include sensitive view corridors from roads, 

parks and other public areas. Internal shall include pocket parks, street terminations 

and other prominent open space features intended to be readily available to 

resident. incorporate active recreation areas provided for the property owners in 

the development.  Active recreation may include pocket parks, well positioned 

seating areas, play equipment, fitness stations, pavilions and other hardscape 

elements.  These areas shall be easily accessible to pedestrians. 

 

(IG)  Responsibility for Common Open Space and Amenities.  
Land not to be held in private ownership shall be owned by a nonprofit corporation in which all 

owners of property within the development have automatic membership rights and assessment 

obligations for the maintenance of these areas. These automatic membership rights and assessment 

obligations shall be covered by covenants running with the land and other contractual provisions 

as to insure the proper maintenance of all commonly owned areas, and shall include provision for 

liens against the individual properties and legally enforceable personal obligations on the part of 

the individual property owners in the development. Such covenants shall be recorded in the office 

of the Register of Deeds and such contractual rights and obligations shall be established prior to 

the issuance of a building permit.  

 

(JH)  Platting Requirements.  

All planned residential developments shall meet the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance. In 

addition, prior to a permit being issued for the construction of any building, there shall have been 



 

 

recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds, a plat of the property or section thereof, showing: 

easement and right-of-way widths, street widths, the actual or approximate location of single family 

lots, commonly owned tracts, and lots and buildings to be occupied by other uses. 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: 2023 MEETING SCHEDULE 

SUBJECT: 2023 MEETING SCHEDULE 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The 2023 Meeting Schedule includes meeting dates and times for the Town Council, boards, and committees. This 
year’s schedule also includes the Council retreat dates.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

It is staff’s recommendation to approve the 2023 Meeting Schedule. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) 2023 Meeting Schedule

Attachment #5



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

2023 MEETING SCHEDULE 

TIME PLACE DAY JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

Beautification Committee 07:00pm TH MON N/A 20 20 17 15 N/A N/A N/A 18 16 20 4 

LV Utilities Committee 06:30pm TH WED N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Parks and Recreation Board 06:30pm TH MON 9 13 13 10 8 12 10 14 11 9 13 11 

Planning Board Meeting  (Room 110) 06:30pm TH WED 11 8 8 12 10 14 12 09 13 11 08 13 

Planning Board Work Session 06:30pm TH WED 18 22 22 26 24 28 26 23 27 25 N/A N/A 

Public Safety Committee 05:30pm TH TUE 3 8 7 4 2 6 N/A 1 5 3 7 5 

Environmental Committee 06:30pm TH TUE 10 14 14 11 9 13 11 8 12 10 14 12 

Special Projects Review Comm 06:30pm TH THU 5 2 2 6 4 1 6 3 7 5 2 7 

T C Briefing & Action Meeting 06:30pm TH THU 5 2 2 6 4 1 6 3 7 5 2 7 

Town Council Meeting (Room 110) 07:00pm TH THU 12 9 9 13 11 8 13 10 14 12 9 14 

Willow Run Mun. Svc. District Board 06:30pm TH TUE 17 N/A 21 N/A 16 N/A N/A 15 N/A 17 N/A N/A 

Zoning Bd. of Adjustment (Room 110) 06:30pm TH TUE 24 28 28 25 23 27 25 22 26 24 28 N/A 

Council Retreat MAWCC  January 27, 5:30 PM; January 28, 8:30 AM 

All meetings are held in conference room 201 unless otherwise noted.   Room 110 is the Council Chambers. 

Additional meetings and changes in the meeting schedule will be advertised on Channel 6 and the Town’s website. 

Special Projects Review Committee - Only meets when there is a request to be heard by the committee.  The meeting follows the Town Council Briefing.  

Zoning Board of Adjustment  - Only meets as needed.     
Planning Board Meeting - If no public hearing is scheduled, Planning Board meets in Town Hall conference room 201. 

DISABLED PERSONS REQUIRING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS MAY CONTACT TOWN HALL AT LEAST 72 HOURS 

 IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING TO REQUEST SPECIAL ASSISTANCE (336-945-5558). 

Location Legend: MAWCC - Mary Alice Warren Community Center; TH  - Town Hall 

DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: 2023 BUDGET CALENDAR 

SUBJECT: 2023 BUDGET CALENDAR 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The 2023 Budget Calendar reflects dates for the 2023-2024 Budget process. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

It is staff’s recommendation to approve the 2023 Budget Calendar. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) 2023 Budget Calendar

Attachment #6



Date Time Note

Draft budget presented to Council at Council meeting April 13, 2023 7:00 PM

Budget workshop April 17, 2023 6:00 PM

Budget Workshop May 1, 2023 6:00 PM

Budget workshop (part of briefing) May 4, 2023 6:30 PM

Budget workshop May 8, 2023 6:00 PM

Budget ordinance final review at briefing June 1, 2023 6:30 PM

Budget public hearing at regular Council meeting June 8, 2023 7:00 PM

2023 BUDGET CALENDAR

DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2022-059 

SUBJECT: ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Town of Lewisville has received inquiries about displaying art at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center 
(MAWCC).  Council directed staff to research the potential establishment of an art advisory committee.  While 
researching the potential formation of an advisory committee, staff recognized the Town currently has public 
outdoor art (dinosaurs and an ostrich at MAWCC) and noted the need for a more expansive committee.  Once 
obtaining further direction from Council, a draft ordinance to establish a Public Art Advisory Committee as a 
standalone committee was developed by staff. The proposed ordinance before Council also includes an application 
to place artwork on Town property; policies and procedures for art donations, loans, and exhibitions on public 
property; and, a Public Art Advisory Committee application.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

It is staff’s recommendation to: 1) approve Ordinance 2022-059 and supporting documents; 2) solicit applications 
to serve on the newly formed committee during the upcoming board/committee recruitment period of January-
March 2023; 3) applications to be reviewed by staff with recommendations to Council at their March 2, 2023 
briefing work session; and, 4) two-year committee appointments be made by Council at their March 9, 2023 
meeting with terms commencing April 1, 2023.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None noted at this time. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2022-059 – Amending Chapter 13-2 of Lewisville Town Code Establishing a Public Art Advisory
Committee

2) Application for placing artwork on Town of Lewisville property
3) Policies and procedures for artwork donations, loans, and exhibitions on public property

4) Lewisville Public Art Advisory Committee application

Attachment #7



 
ORDINANCE 2022-059 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE  

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
 
WHEREAS, there is a desire to showcase public art within the Town of Lewisville; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council recognizes the value of resident inclusion. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL establishes a Public Art 
Advisory Committee. 
 

1. Committee Name – Public Art Advisory Committee (herein referred to as “Committee”).  
 

2. Committee Type – The Committee will serve in an advisory role to Town Council. 
 

3. Mission – The Committee may suggest and recommend actions pertaining to the acquisition, loan, 
placement, maintenance, display, and/or disposal of the Town’s public artworks.  The Committee 
shall consult with and advise Town staff and Town Council in matters affecting public art policies, 
resources, and acquisitions related to the total Town public arts program.  
 

4. Public Art Definition 
a. Photography, paintings, sculptures, murals, pottery, ceramics, tapestry, fabric, and other 

media. 
b. Visually and physically accessible to community. 
c. Indoor or outdoor. 
d. Temporary or permanent. 
 

5. Department Funding  
a. The Committee shall coordinate an annual budget, if needed, with the Town Manager by 

February 28 for approval by Town Council. 
b. Expenditures must follow the Town’s financial procedures. 
 

6. Membership 
a. The Committee shall be comprised of five (5) members.  Those with an art background will be 

given preference.  Examples of art professionals include, but are not limited to: visual arts, art 
nonprofit workers, design professionals, art educators, architects, art collectors, artists, 
craftsperson, and other professions in visual arts. 

b. Members are appointed by Town Council. Residents interested in serving on the Committee 
shall submit a Public Art Advisory Committee application form to the Town Clerk requesting 
appointment.  The Town Clerk forwards information to Council.  

c. Members serve without compensation. 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2022-059 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

7. Terms of Appointment
a. Appointments shall be for two (2) years expiring on March 31, following municipal elections

(even years). Terms commence on April 1.
b. Committee members shall be appointed by Town Council, each to serve a two (2)-year term

renewable without limitation to the number of consecutive terms.
c. Members who wish to resign their appointment shall submit their resignation to the Town

Clerk who shall provide to Town Council for their acceptance. Vacancies on the Committee
shall be filled for the unexpired term by Town Council.

8. Committee Structure
a. Chair

i. The Committee shall select from among themselves a Chair.
ii. The Chair shall serve for two (2) years.

iii. The Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or later,
following March appointments.

b. Vice Chair
i. The Committee shall select from among themselves a Vice Chair.

ii. The Vice Chair shall serve for two (2) years.
iii. The Vice Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or later,

following March appointments.

9. Advisory Members – Individuals occupying the following positions shall, by appointment, serve in
an advisory capacity.
a. Town Manager or designee
b. Public Works Director or designee
c. Community Center Programming and Facilities Manager or designee

10. Meetings
a. The Committee shall establish its own regular meeting schedule. Schedule to be provided to

the Town Clerk for appropriate filing and posting.
b. The Committee shall meet as needed.
c. All Committee meetings are subject to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law.
d. Minutes of all meetings shall be maintained in accordance with public records laws and

regulations with approved Committee meeting minutes submitted to the Town Clerk for
appropriate filing and posting.

e. Three (3) members, one of which must be the Chair or Vice Chair, constitute a quorum.
f. The Committee shall have a meeting attendance policy such that members failing to attend

three (3) consecutive regular Committee meetings, without notification to the Chair or Town
Clerk, shall have their membership subject to review and possible replacement by the Town
Council.

DRAFT



 
ORDINANCE 2022-059 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE  

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
 

11. Reports – The Committee Chair shall submit a report of its activities and other important matters 
to the Town Council upon request. 
 

12. Requests – All official requests should be in writing from the Committee Chair and must be 
presented to the Town Manager.  

 
 
Adopted this the 11th day of November, 2022.  
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT



Page 1 of 3 November 2022 

APPLICATION FOR PLACING ARTWORK 
ON TOWN OF LEWISVILLE PROPERTY 

Thank you for your interest in placing artwork on property owned by the Town of Lewisville.  
Please complete and submit this application, along with the proposal, to:  

Lewisville Public Art Advisory Committee 
Town of Lewisville

6510 Shallowford Road, PO Box 547
Lewisville, NC 27023

Please review the attached Policies and Procedures.  For assistance, please contact the Town Clerk at 336-945-1022 or 
townclerk@lewisvillenc.net. The Lewisville Public Art Advisory Committee reserves the right to request additional information 
in order to process an exhibition proposal.     

 APPLICANT 
Name(s)/Organization: 

Contact: 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Phone: Fax: 

Email: Website: 

Conflicts of Interest (disclose any active contracts or contract negotiations with the Town): 

TOWN STAFF

Received by:  

Date: 

DRAFT



Page 2 of 3 November 2022 

PROPOSED ARTWORK 
Title of proposed artwork or exhibition 

Labeling - include artist’s name, date of creation, materials used (optional), short explanation of work 
(optional), donor’s name, when applicable 

(Optional) Proposed Town-owned site for placement: 

Participants (list anyone that will be involved in the project): 

DRAFT



Page 3 of 3 November 2022 

ARTWORK DETAILS 
Please attach a proposal that includes the following: 

1. Narrative description of the artwork or project including:
a. Concept
b. Aesthetic vision
c. Artist involvement
d. Materials
e. Processes
f. Durability
g. Other relevant information

2. Timeline and detailed installation plan (including specific required components for
installation)

3. Maintenance plan while the piece is on display (whether temporary or permanent)

4. Qualifications including:
a. Artist(s) resume/bio
b. Examples of past exhibits or similar projects

5. Visuals including:
a. Sketches, photographs, or other documentation of sufficient descriptive

clarity to indicate the nature of the proposed art including an accurate
description of colors

b. (If applicable) Digital, color images of artworks in exhibition

c. (if applicable) A site plan clearly showing the dimensions and the location of
the art and its relation to pedestrian path of travel on the site and in the
vicinity, including adjacent rights-of-way.

d. (If applicable) An elevation or perspective rendering showing the streetscape
view of the art including the street elevations of adjacent properties

e. Digital images of past exhibits or similar projects
f. Maquette or rendering of artwork(s)

Submit application and supporting materials to: 
Lewisville Public Art Advisory Committee 

Town of Lewisville
6510 Shallowford Road, PO Box 547

Lewisville, NC 27023

Or electronically at: townclerk@lewisvillenc.net 

APPLICANT’S AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE REVIEW OF AN EXHIBITION 
PROPOSAL 
Authorized signature: Signature of Legal Guardian 

if Artist is a minor:  

Print name: Date: 

DRAFT

mailto:CityofFranklin@FranklinTN.gov


November 2022  Page 1 of 4  

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR ARTWORK 
DONATIONS, LOANS, AND EXHIBITIONS ON PUBLIC PROPERTY  

For assistance, please contact the Town Clerk at 336-945-1022 or townclerk@lewisvillenc.net.  

Background: 
Private individuals and agencies occasionally offer works of art as donations or loans to the Town of 
Lewisville or desire to display art owned by those individuals or agencies on public property.  Similarly, 
individuals or groups may also wish to propose a public art project that would be temporarily or 
permanently installed on Town property.   

The Lewisville Public Arts Committee  was established to provide guidance and oversight for art 
projects which are for public display in the Town of Lewisville.  The Committee reviews and 
makes recommendations concerning all aspects of public art, including policy, projects, 
acquisition, siting maintenance, adoption, deaccessioning, education, and outreach. 

The Committee shall be comprised of five (5) members.  Those with an art background will be given 
preference.  Examples of art professionals include, but are not limited to: visual arts, art nonprofit 
workers, design professionals, art educators, architects, art collectors, artists, craftsperson, and other 
professions in visual arts.
Definitions:  

Artwork Donations/Gifts/Loans: 

• Unrestricted Donation/Gift – The donation of a work of art to the Town without any restrictions
placed on where it is sited.

• Restricted Donation/Gift – The donation of a site-specific work of art to the Town.
• Loan – The loan of a work of art to the Town, with or without restrictions placed on where it is

sited.

Exhibitions/Artwork: 
• Temporary Exhibition/Artwork – A proposed exhibition or work of public art installed temporarily

on Town property.  Proposals may be site-specific or not.
• Permanent Exhibition/Artwork – A proposed exhibition or work of public art installed permanently

on Town property. Proposals may be site-specific or not.
• Exhibition of privately owned art on Public Property – A proposed exhibition of art not owned by the

Town but located outside the business or building of the art owner on Town property.

DRAFT



November 2022  Page 2 of 4  

Panel Review Guidelines: 
The Committee will review each donation, loan, and exhibition proposal on the basis of the 
criteria established below.  Individuals or groups will be required to submit the relevant application 
and supporting materials when proposing a donation, loan, artwork, or exhibition in order to ensure 
that all criteria are addressed.  

1. Artistic Merit:  Does the artwork have strong artistic merit?  Criteria include but are not limited to:
• Durability and craftsmanship in fabrication.
• Appropriateness of artwork scale to the proposed site.
• Appropriateness of artwork to other aspects of its surroundings, and artist's credentials and

recognition.

2. Site:  What type of site is proposed for the artwork?  Siting criteria include but are not limited to:
• As applicable, the artwork shall meet Town structural building, right-of-way, electrical, and

other codes for safety.
• Permanently sited artwork shall relate to the architectural, historical, geographical, and/or

sociocultural context of the site.

3. Safety, Maintainability and Feasibility:  Artworks on Town property must be structurally
sound, durable and resistant to vandalism, weathering, and excessive maintenance/repair costs and
should not pose a threat to the safety of the public.  As applicable, the artwork shall be
accessible to all people and meet American with Disabilities Act requirements.  Applicant must
provide the following information for the Committee review:
• Adjacent/surrounding site conditions if applicable,
• Dimensions
• Materials
• Colors
• Power, plumbing or other utility requirements
• Construction/installation method
• Fabricator is qualified to install the work and carries adequate insurance to meet Town

standards.
• Evidence the art will not pose a threat to public safety.

The Committee may require additional support materials such as text verbally describing 
artwork and specifications, structural and engineering drawings, models or presentation drawings.  

DRAFT



November 2022  Page 3 of 4  

Procedure: 

A. Completed and signed applications, proposals, and supporting materials, including images or a
maquette or rendering of artwork(s), should be submitted to the Committee and reviewed
by staff for completion. Any questions regarding the application process should be referred to
the Town of Lewisville's Town Clerk.

B. The Committee will review applications and supporting materials, according to the criteria
outlined above, at their regularly scheduled meeting.  Applications and proposals should be
received at least four weeks prior to the meeting. If needed, Committee can schedule a special
meeting to review the application.  Committee will determine, at the meeting, whether they
will recommend accepting or rejecting the proposal.  The Committee may attach conditions to
its recommendations for acceptance or rejection of proposals.

C. If a specific site is recommended for placement of the donated or loaned work or exhibition of
private art on public property, Committee will review the proposed site. The site will also need
to be approved by appropriate Town departments (Planning and Public Works).  If
the site is within the Downtown Overlay, Committee will forward the proposal and their
recommendations to the Planning Board  If a site has not been proposed, Committee will work
with the applicant to identify an appropriate location for the work of art or exhibition.

D. If the proposal is accepted, Committee will forward the recommendation (along
with the recommendation of the Planning Board, if applicable) to the Town Council for final
approval.

E. Committee will work with individuals or groups on agreements, timelines, and
installation of artwork(s).  If the work or exhibition has yet to be fabricated, Committee must
be kept informed of the creation process with progress updates and scheduled studio visits.

F. If Committee and the Town approve the exhibition of private art on public property, the
owner of the private art must execute an agreement with the Town whereby, among other
things, the owner assumes liability for personal or property damage arising from the exhibition
of that private art on public property.DRAFT



November 2022  Page 4 of 4  

Eligible Artworks: 
All artworks commissioned or acquired under the Lewisville Public Art Program shall be designed, or 
the process facilitated by, artist(s). Such artworks may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Design work provided by the artists, including:
i. Artwork mounted or painted on exterior surfaces, fixtures and functional elements.
ii. Outdoor space design elements in areas such as plazas, public parks, arcades, and

pedestrian passageways.
iii. Artistic design of roadways, bridges, parkways, pedestrian or bicycle pathways, transit

system improvements, water and watershed facilities, solid waste transfer stations and
sites with historic, archeological, and unique geological features.

2. Forms of visual art such as, but not limited to:
i. Sculptures, including bas-relief (cast), mobile, fountain, environmental, kinetic and

electronic, in any material or combination of materials.
ii. All paintings, including murals and frescoes on portable and/or permanent structures.
iii. Art forms in clay, fiber and textile woods, metal, plastics, glass mosaics and other

material; any combination or forms of media.

Ineligible Artworks: 
1. "Art objects" which are mass-produced of standard design such as playground equipment,

fountains, or statuary objects, unless incorporated into the artwork by a project artist.
2. Directional elements such as graphics, signage unless where these elements are integral parts

of the original work of art or Public Art project.
3. Reproductions, by mechanical or other means, of original works of art, unless in cases where

such reproduction is inherent in the art-making process, such as films, video, photography,
printmaking, computer imagery or other media arts.

4. Decorative, ornamental or functional elements or architecture except where these elements are
designed by the artist and/or are an integral part of the artwork by the artist or are the results
of collaboration among design professionals, including at least one artist.

5. Services or utilities necessary to operate or maintain the artwork in perpetuity.
6. Artwork painted on unpainted masonry that is part of a historically designated building or

structure.
7. Artwork that is considered distasteful not suitable for public viewing as determined by the

Committee.
DRAFT



 TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
6510 Shallowford Road, PO Box 547 

Lewisville, NC 27023 

LEWISVILLE PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

Full Name: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Day Phone: Evening Phone: Cell: 

Email: 

EMPLOYMENT AND EDUCATION 

Employer: 
Address: 

Phone: 
Email: 
Occupation:  

Graduate? Y/N Major 
High School: 
College:   
Graduate School: 
Other:    

Are you a current board/committee member?  Yes   No   

Board/Committee:   Original Appointment Date: 

Are you requesting reappointment?  Yes   No  

Why are you interested in serving on Lewisville’s Public Art Advisory Committee? ______________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

List what interests, skills, expertise, and/or experience you have that may be of assistance to the Public Art 
Advisory Committee? _______________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature:                                                      Date:   

Available date(s) for interview: 

Submit applications to: Town Clerk, Town of Lewisville, PO Box 547, Lewisville, NC 27023 or townclerk@lewisvillenc.net. 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
Date Received: Interview Date: ______________ 

Interview Date: Appointed:  Yes   No  
Recommendation:_____________________________________________ 

DRAFT

mailto:townclerk@lewisvillenc.net


STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2022-060 

SUBJECT: WEST FORSYTH CHRISTIAN PRESCHOOL FACILITY EXEMPT 
REQUEST 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

West Forsyth Christian Preschool has submitted an application and documentation requesting consideration for 
facility use exemption of Town parks and recreation facilities. 

They hold an annual fundraiser that is a silent auction/gallery hop that serves 125-150 people. Funds raised are 
used to improve the preschool and playground. 

They are requesting use of the Mary Alice Warren Community Center on April 21, 2023. 

NOTE:  Application contained requested information.  If request is approved by Council, organization will need to 
provide certificate of insurance in accordance with Town Code 16-14(J)3. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting Council to either approve or deny the request.  

Staff will notify the organization of the Council’s action. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Fees are either exempted or reduced at Town parks and recreational facilities per Town Code 16-14 and 16-18(f). 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2022-060 – Amending Chapter 16 related to facility use exemptions – West Forsyth
Christian Preschool

2) West Forsyth Christian Preschool facility use exemption request application

Attachment #8



 
ORDINANCE 2022-060 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 16 PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 
FACILITY USE EXEMPTION POLICY 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Ordinance 2007006 enacting a code of ordinances which 
revised, amended, restated, codified and compiled existing ordinances on March 8, 2007 with the 
understanding that chapters would need to be updated; and 
 
WHEREAS, changes in the status of town facilities necessitates amendments to the Parks, Recreation and 
Cultural Development Policies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has received a facility use exemption request from West Forsyth 
Christian Preschool. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the addition of 
West Forsyth Christian Preschool as an exempt user of town facilities and amends Town Code 16-14(J)2 
to reflect same.  It is the intent of the Lewisville Town Council that the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be made a part of the Town of Lewisville Town Code; the sections of this ordinance may be re-numbered 
or re-lettered; and, the word ‘ordinance’ may be changed to ‘section’, ‘article’, ‘chapter’ or other 
appropriate designation to accomplish such intention as needed. 
 
Adopted this the 11th day of November, 2022.  
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 















STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2022-061 

SUBJECT: KIWANIS CLUB OF CLEMMONS FACILITY EXEMPT 
REQUEST 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Kiwanis Club of Clemmons has submitted an application and documentation requesting consideration for facility 
use exemption of Town parks and recreation facilities.   

They would like the use of facilities for special club events or joint meetings with other community clubs as they 
plan projects. They would attempt to avoid busy holiday periods and will not request facilities for routine meetings. 

NOTE:  Application contained requested information.  If request is approved by Council, organization will need to 
provide certificate of insurance in accordance with Town Code 16-14(J)3. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting Council to either approve or deny the request.  

Staff will notify the organization of the Council’s action. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Fees are either exempted or reduced at Town parks and recreational facilities per Town Code 16-14 and 16-18(f). 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2022-061 – Amending Chapter 16 related to facility use exemptions – Kiwanis Club of
Clemmons

2) Kiwanis Club of Clemmons facility use exemption request application

Attachment #9



 
ORDINANCE 2022-061 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 16 PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 
FACILITY USE EXEMPTION POLICY 

 
WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Ordinance 2007006 enacting a code of ordinances which 
revised, amended, restated, codified and compiled existing ordinances on March 8, 2007 with the 
understanding that chapters would need to be updated; and 
 
WHEREAS, changes in the status of town facilities necessitates amendments to the Parks, Recreation and 
Cultural Development Policies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has received a facility use exemption request from the Kiwanis 
Club of Clemmons. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the addition of the 
Kiwanis Club of Clemmons as an exempt user of town facilities and amends Town Code 16-14(J)2 to reflect 
same.  It is the intent of the Lewisville Town Council that the provisions of this ordinance shall be made a 
part of the Town of Lewisville Town Code; the sections of this ordinance may be re-numbered or re-
lettered; and, the word ‘ordinance’ may be changed to ‘section’, ‘article’, ‘chapter’ or other appropriate 
designation to accomplish such intention as needed. 
 
Adopted this the 11th day of November, 2022.  
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 







































STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2022-062 

SUBJECT: TIM SUTTON MINISTRIES INTERNATIONAL, INC. FACILITY 
EXEMPT REQUEST 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Tim Sutton Ministries International, Inc. has submitted an application and documentation requesting consideration 
for facility use exemption of Town parks and recreation facilities.   

They would like the use of Mary Alice Warren Community Center for three nights in December to conduct their 
annual ‘Operation Share the Love’ event to benefit Lewisville residents.  Approximately 150 families will receive 
turkeys, toys, gift cards and other various free prizes. 

NOTE:  Application contained requested information.  If request is approved by Council, organization will need to 
provide certificate of insurance in accordance with Town Code 16-14(J)3. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting Council to either approve or deny the request.  

Staff will notify the organization of the Council’s action. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Fees are either exempted or reduced at Town parks and recreational facilities per Town Code 16-14 and 16-18(f). 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2022-062 – Amending Chapter 16 related to facility use exemptions – Tim Sutton
Ministries International, Inc.

2) Tim Sutton Ministries International, Inc. facility use exemption request application

Attachment #10



 
ORDINANCE 2022-062 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 16 PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 
FACILITY USE EXEMPTION POLICY 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Ordinance 2007006 enacting a code of ordinances which 
revised, amended, restated, codified and compiled existing ordinances on March 8, 2007 with the 
understanding that chapters would need to be updated; and 
 
WHEREAS, changes in the status of town facilities necessitates amendments to the Parks, Recreation and 
Cultural Development Policies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has received a facility use exemption request from Tim Sutton 
Ministries International Inc. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the addition of Tim 
Sutton Ministries International Inc. as an exempt user of town facilities and amends Town Code 16-14(J)2 
to reflect same.  It is the intent of the Lewisville Town Council that the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be made a part of the Town of Lewisville Town Code; the sections of this ordinance may be re-numbered 
or re-lettered; and, the word ‘ordinance’ may be changed to ‘section’, ‘article’, ‘chapter’ or other 
appropriate designation to accomplish such intention as needed. 
 
Adopted this the 11th day of November, 2022.  
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

















STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2022-063 

SUBJECT: LEWISVILLE UNITED METHODIST CHURCH FACILITY 
EXEMPT REQUEST 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Lewisville United Methodist Church has submitted an application and documentation requesting consideration for 
facility use exemption of Town parks and recreation facilities.   

They would like the use of Mary Alice Warren Community center for their annual holiday dinner for teachers and 
board members of their preschool.  They are interested in December 14, 2022.  If space works well for this year’s 
event, they may use again in 2023.  

NOTE:  Application contained requested information.  If request is approved by Council, organization will need to 
provide certificate of insurance in accordance with Town Code 16-14(J)3. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting Council to either approve or deny the request.  

Staff will notify the organization of the Council’s action. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Fees are either exempted or reduced at Town parks and recreational facilities per Town Code 16-14 and 16-18(f). 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2022-063 – Amending Chapter 16 related to facility use exemptions – Lewisville United
Methodist Church

2) Lewisville United Methodist Church facility use exemption request application

Attachment #11



 
ORDINANCE 2022-063 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 16 PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 
FACILITY USE EXEMPTION POLICY 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Ordinance 2007006 enacting a code of ordinances which 
revised, amended, restated, codified and compiled existing ordinances on March 8, 2007 with the 
understanding that chapters would need to be updated; and 
 
WHEREAS, changes in the status of town facilities necessitates amendments to the Parks, Recreation and 
Cultural Development Policies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has received a facility use exemption request from Lewisville 
United Methodist Church. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the addition of 
Lewisville United Methodist Church as an exempt user of town facilities and amends Town Code 16-14(J)2 
to reflect same.  It is the intent of the Lewisville Town Council that the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be made a part of the Town of Lewisville Town Code; the sections of this ordinance may be re-numbered 
or re-lettered; and, the word ‘ordinance’ may be changed to ‘section’, ‘article’, ‘chapter’ or other 
appropriate designation to accomplish such intention as needed. 
 
Adopted this the 11th day of November, 2022.  
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 







FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION 

PO Box 340029 

OF THE UNITED METHODIST CHURCH Nashville, TN 37203·0029 


February 21, 2017 

LEWISVILLE UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 

201 SONATA DR 

LEWISVILLE NC 27023 

Re: Certification ofInclusion in The United Methodist Church Group Tax Exemption Ruling 

Affiliated Organization:· LEWISVILLE UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 

Affiliated Organization's Employer Identification Number (EIN): 56-1146535 

This letter will certify that the affiliated organization named above is included in The United Methodist 
Church Group Tax Exemption Ruling ("UMC GroupRuling"). In particular, as stated in the GroupRuling 
detennination letter issued to The United Methodist Church by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), this 
affiliated organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. 

This certification letter is issued by the General Council on Finance and Administration of The United 
Methodist Church ("GCF A"), the central organization for the UMC GroupRuling. As the central 
organization, GCF A has been granted the authority by the IRS to determine which organizations are 
included in the UMC GroupRuling. (The IRS Group Exemption Number ("GEN") for the UMC 
GroupRuling is 2573.) Thus, this certification letter, together with the enclosed copy of the IRS 
GroupRuling detennination letter, serves to verify the tax-exempt status of this affiliated organization. 

If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact the GCF A Legal Services Department at 
(866) 367-4232 or legal@gcfa.org. 

Sincerely, 

GENERAL COUNCIL ON FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION OF 


THE UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 


Leticia Mayberry Wright 

Assistant General Counsel 


Enclosures 

mailto:legal@gcfa.org


LEWISVILLE UNITED METHODIST CHURCH  
2023 CHURCH LEADERSHIP LIST 

 
Church Council  

• Chair        Bo Houff  
• Lay Leader       Dean Norman 
• SPRC Chair       Jerry Farmer 
• Finance Chair      John Wells  
• Stewardship      Phyllis Moore  
• Treasurer       Karla Hutcherson  (voice, but no vote) 
• Financial Secretary & Membership Secretary  Hollee Harris  (voice, but no vote) 
• Trustee Chair      Paul Mullican   
• Lay Member of Annual Conference   Rhys Long   (2021-2024) 
• Missions Chair`     Susan Orr 
• Evangelism Chair & Recording Secretary  Cheryl Gross 
• At Large       Daniel Godfrey (2025) 
• At Large       Anne Watkins (2025) 
• At Large       Margaret Connor (2025) 
• UMM President      Ed Smith 
• UMW President      Debbie Norman 
• Senior Pastor      Paul Brown 
• Associate Pastor     Kara Chamberlin 
• Youth Director     Victoria Argento 
• Director of Music      Debby Trivett 
• Worship Leader     Travis Jeffords 

 
Board of Trustees 

• Chair: Paul Mullican 
• Ex officio: Pastor Paul (voice, but no vote) 
• 2023: Mark Alexander, Cathy Wells, David Kivett 
• 2024: Don Moore, Ed Smith, Brian Edwards 
• 2025: Paul Mullican, Ellen Farmer, Joyce Bowers 
A quorum of at least half of the trustees is required to conduct business. 

 
Cemetery Team 

• Ed Smith (Chair), Phyllis Moore, Wayne Hall, Don Morris, Jimmy Owens, Ron Darby, Dean 
Norman, Terri Vogler, Zeke Mock 

 
 
 



Parsonage Team 
• Cathy Wells (Chair), Ellen Farmer, Linda Lyon, Jo Beth Melton, Carolyn Petty, Paul 

Mullican, Jason Harvey, Pastor Paul, Rebecca Brown 
 

Sanctuary Team 
• Cathy Wells and Connie Beard (chairs), Kelly Morris, Nancy Fisher, Vivian & Steve 

Newman, Doris Buchanan, Sylvia & Derrell Spell, Judy Nance, Carolyn Petty, Sue Darby 
 
Finance Team 

• Chair: John Wells 
• Treasurer: Karla Hutcherson (voice, but no vote) 
• Financial Secretary: Hollee Harris (voice, but no vote) 
• Stewardship: Phyllis Moore 
• Ex officio: Pastor Paul, Pastor Kara, Dean Norman (Lay Leader), Bo Houff (Church Council 

Chair), Paul Mullican (Trustees Chair) 
• 2023: Ron Darby, Gary Gross, Doug Brown, Tom Lee 
• 2024: Tim Proctor, Jay Cope, Lisa Smitherman 
• 2025: Dustin Jennings, Elise Ward 

 
Staff Parish Relations Committee 

• Chair: Jerry Farmer 
• Ex officio: Rhys Long (A.C. Delegate), Dean Norman (Lay Leader) 
• Pastor Paul (voice, but no vote) 
• 2023: Elise Ward, Buck Johnson 
• 2024: Judy Nance, Jerry Farmer, Mike Williams 
• 2025: Derick Flanery, Tim Rains, Ken Jones, Kaye Patterson 

 
Nominations and Leadership Development Team 

• Chair: Pastor Paul 
• Ex officio: Dean Norman (Lay Leader) 
• 2023: Joyce Bowers, Brenda Proctor 
• 2024: Debby Trivett, Sue Darby 
• 2025: Wayne Hall, Debbie Rossi 

 
Discipleship Team (Nurture) 

• Chair: Pastor Kara 
• Julie Rains (Small Groups), Tom Lee (Stephen Ministries), Mike & Shannon Williams (Youth), 

Margy Smith, Brooke Boger, Kristina Krupp (Children), Kelly Morris (Preschool), Tracy Conner 
(After School), Anne Kirkman (Church Librarian), Debbie Norman (UMW/WHO), Terri Vogler 
(Sunday School Secretary), Nan Johnson (Echoes) 



 
Missions Team (Outreach) 

• Chair: Susan Orr 
• Ex officio: Pastor Paul, Victoria Argento 
• Melony Brown (LCAP), Nancy Fisher (Blood Drives), Suzanne Farlow (Transportation Ministry), 

Dean Norman, Lu Cooper, Tanya Kivett, Tim Proctor, Janet Sizemore, Cathy Wells, Connie 
Beard, Libby Reynolds, Jackie Harrell 

 
Evangelism Team (Witness) 

• Chair: Cheryl Gross 
• Ex officio: Pastor Kara 
• Dean Norman, Chuck Robinson, Ed Smith, Randy Orr (Ushers), Robin Speckhart (Greeters), 

Laura Morris, Teresa Hire, Jim Connor 
 
 
 







































STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2022-056 

SUBJECT: DECLARING ROAD CLOSURE FOR CHRISTMAS PARADE 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Annually, Council must approved road closures for the annual Christmas parade.  NCDOT has confirmed there are 
no issues on their end to prevent road closures for the annual Lewisville Christmas Parade on December 11, 2022.  

The parade route and closures remain the same as in past years.  

Local fire and police departments are aware of the proposed closings, date and times. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting Council approval of Ordinance 2022-056.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2022-056 – Declaring road closure for the 2022 Christmas parade

Attachment #12



ORDINANCE 2022-056 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
DECLARING ROAD CLOSURE FOR CHRISTMAS PARADE 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council acknowledges a long tradition of an annual Christmas parade 
provided by the Lewisville Civic Club for the pleasure of its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council acknowledges a parade requires approximately one and one half 
(1.5) hours to install signs and traffic control, and also requires approximately one and one half (1.5) hours 
for removing signs, traffic control, and minimal litter pickup; and, 

WHREAS, full litter removal will be completed by contract the following day; and 

WHEREAS, roads will close to through traffic at 2:30 PM on the day of the parade; and, 

WHEREAS, law enforcement agencies and emergency services have been notified of the closure; and, 

WHEREAS, roads will be reopened at the conclusion of the parade; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation has reviewed the route cited below and 
determined there are no NCDOT projects or maintenance activities scheduled for the date of the parade. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL pursuant to the authority 
granted by NCGS 20-169, that they do hereby declare a temporary road closure during the day and times 
set forth below on the following described portion(s) of a State Highway System Route: 

Date: Sunday, December, 11, 2022 

Time: 1:30 PM until 5:30 PM 

Route Description:  Lewisville-Vienna Road (SR 1308) from the Great Wagon Road to Shallowford 
Road (SR 1001); from Shallowford Road (SR 1001) to the Williams 
Road/Shallowford Road Roundabout; right onto continuation of Shallowford 
Road (SR 1001) to right onto Belnette Drive (local); right onto David McKee 
Street (local); and left onto the Great Wagon Road (local) 

Additional Closures:  
- Lewisville-Vienna Road (SR 1308) from Jennings Road/Grapevine Road

(SR 1307) to the Great Wagon Road at Lewisville-Vienna Road for
emergency services staging

- Streets along Shallowford Road: Great Wagon Road, Esso Lane, Conrad
Circle, Shallowford Village Court, Styers Street, Lewisville-Clemmons
Road, North Street and inclusive neighborhood, Lucy Lane, Arrow Leaf
Drive, David McKee Street, Mock Garden Lane, Sunny Acres Drive,
Belnette Drive and Brookside Drive and inclusive neighborhood

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2022-056 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
DECLARING ROAD CLOSURE FOR CHRISTMAS PARADE 

This ordinance is to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the limits and times of the 
parade and implementation of adequate traffic control to guide through vehicles around the parade 
route.  

Adopted and enacted this the 10th day of November 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2022-057 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR SECURITY CAMERAS 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Staff was requested to obtain quotes to upgrade security cameras at Town facilities due to 1) currently unprotected 
areas; and 2) poor resolution quality due to age of cameras.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting Council approval of Ordinance 2022-057.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$42,966.28 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Ordinance 2022-057 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2022001 to install new security cameras at Town
facilities

Attachment #13



CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

10-00-4120-5000

Administration-Capital 

Outlay 6,811.98$      10-00-3990-9000

General Fund - Fund Balance 

Appropriated 42,966.28$       

10-00-4120-6000

Administration-Contracted 

Services 300.00$      

10-80-6120-5000

Parks & Recreation - Capital 

Outlay 32,341.30$       

10-80-6120-6000

Parks & Recreation - 

Contracted Services 3,513.00$      

42,966.28$       42,966.28$       

EXPLANATION: To install new security cameras at Town Hall, Shallowford Square, Jack Warren Park,

the G. Galloway Community Center, and the Mary Alice Warren Community Center.

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pam Orrell, Town Finance Officer

Approved and effective upon adoption this the 10th day of November  2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

ATTEST:

Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk

Budget Amendment # 16

Pam Orrell, Finance Officer 

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE

Budget Amendment Ordinance 2022-057

Amending Budget Ordinance 2022001

FINANCE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2022-064 

SUBJECT: SECURITY CAMERAS AT TOWN FACILITIES 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Staff was requested to obtain quotes to upgrade security cameras at Town facilities due to 1) currently unprotected 
areas; and 2) poor resolution quality due to age of cameras.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

If Ordinance 2022-057 is approved by Council, staff is requesting Council approval of Resolution 2022-064.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$42,966.28 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Resolution 2022-064 – Authorizing a security camera contract with Sage Security Solutions LLC

Attachment #14



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2022-065 

SUBJECT: APPOINTING DEPUTY FINANCE OFFICER 

PREPARED BY: DORA MOORE, TOWN CLERK 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Per the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act, the Town needs to name a Deputy Finance Officer to serve 
in the absence of the Finance Officer.  In the past, the Town Manager has been named and served as Deputy Finance 
Officer.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff is requesting Council approval of Resolution 2022-065 appointing Town Manager James Ayers as Deputy 
Finance Officer.   

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1) Resolution 2022-065 – Appointing Deputy Finance Officer

Attachment #15



 
RESOLUTION 2022-065 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

APPOINTING DEPUTY FINANCE OFFICER 
 

 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, budgets and fiscal control are governed by NCGS 159; and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing board of the Town of Lewisville has appointed a Finance Officer as 
required by NCGS 159-24; and 
 
WHEREAS, the duties of the Finance Officer are identified in NCGS 159-25; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Budget Officer may act in the absence of the Finance Officer.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that Town Manager 
James Ayers is named as the Town of Lewisville’s Deputy Finance Officer to satisfy the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.  
 
Adopted this the 11th day of November 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
             

______________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



UPCOMING TOWN EVENTS AND HOLIDAY CLOSINGS 

November 11, 2022 Veterans Day  Town offices closed 

November 24-25, 2022  Thanksgiving holiday Town offices closed 

December 2, 2022 Christmas Tree Lighting 7 PM, Shallowford Square 

December 11, 2022 Christmas Parade 3 PM 

December 21-30, 2022  Cardboard Recycling program 

December 23 & 26, 2022 Christmas holiday Town offices closed 

Attachment #16


	00 11-10-2022 Agenda
	01 2022-063 - Res - Financials
	02 10-06-2022 TC Briefing Minutes
	03 10-13-2022 TC Meeting Minutes
	04 2022-029 Ord - Lewisville Rural Overlay and Planned Residential Developments
	2022-029 -Ord - UDO L167 Lewisville Rural Overlay
	UDO L-167 STAFF REPORT
	UDO L-167_FINAL DRAFT1

	05 2023 Meeting schedule
	Meeting schedule - staff form
	2023 Meeting Schedule Master Admin

	06 2023 Budget calendar
	budget calendar - staff form
	2023 Budget Calendar

	07 Ord 2022-059 - Establish Public Art Committee
	Art committee - Staff report form
	2022-059 - Ord - Establishing Art Committee
	Application Packet - Lewisville (10-4-2022 draft)
	FPAC Application FINAL 08.2018
	FPAC procedure FINAL 08.2018.pdf

	Art Committee Application

	08 2022-060 - Ord - Facility Exemption - West Forsyth Christian Preschool
	West Forsyth - Facility use exempt request - staff form
	2022-060 - Ord - Facility Exemption - West Forsyth Christian Preschool
	04 West Forsyth Christian Preschool Exempt Request

	09 2022-061 - Ord - Facility Exemption - Kiwanis Club of Clemmons
	Kiwanis - Facility use exempt request - staff form
	2022-061 - Ord - Facility Exemption - Kiwanis Club of Clemmons
	05 Kiwanis Club of Clemmons

	10 2022-062 - Ord - Facility Exemption - Tim Sutton Ministries
	Tim Sutton - Facility use exempt request - staff form
	2022-062 - Ord - Facility Exemption - Tim Sutton Ministries
	Facility Exempt Request - Tim Sutton Ministries

	11 2022-063 - Ord - Facility Exemption - Lewisvile UMC
	Lewisville UMC- Facility use exempt request - staff form
	2022-063 - Ord - Facility Exemption - Lewisvile UMC
	Facility Exempt Request - Lewisville UMC
	Town Form.pdf
	501 3 C Non Profit Status Blanket Letter.pdf
	2023 Church Leadership List.pdf
	LUMC Member Directory.pdf


	12 2022-056 - Ord - Christmas parade road closure
	Christmas road closure - staff form
	13 2022-056 - Ord - Declaring road closure for Christmas Parade

	13 2022-057 - Ord - amend budget - security cameras
	Budget amendment - security cameras - staff form
	2022-057 - Ord - Budget Amend 16 - Security Cameras

	14 2022-064 - Res - security camera contract
	Security camera contract- staff form
	15 2022-064 - Res - security cameras

	15 2022-065 - Res - Deputy Finance Officer
	Deputy Finance Officer- staff form
	2022-065 - Res - Deputy Finance Officer

	16 UPCOMING TOWN EVENTS AND HOLIDAY CLOSINGS



